
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
7:00 P.M., APRIL 12, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC11-05 
1.  ROLL CALL:  
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Approval of February 22, 2011 Planning Commission Minutes. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
This is a time for public comments for items that are not listed on this agenda.  Comments should be brief.  If you 
have an item that will require extended discussion, please request the item be scheduled on a future agenda. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

For each of the following items, the public will be given an opportunity to speak.  After a Staff Report, the Chair 
will open the Public Hearing.  At that time, the applicant will be allowed to make a presentation.  Members of 
the public will then be allowed to speak.  After all have spoken, the applicant is allowed to respond to issues 
raised by the public, after which the Public Hearing is normally closed.  Comments should be brief and to the 
point.  The Chair reserves the right to limit repetitious or non-related comments.  The public is reminded that all 
decisions of the Planning Commission are appealable to the City Council by filing a written Notice of Appeal 
with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days. 

 
 A. A Resolution of the Suisun City Planning Commission approving Conditional Use Permit 

Application No. UP 10/1-005 for the establishment of an Auto Repair Business at 605 Railroad 
Avenue, Unit J (0037-090-060).  Muhammad Malik, applicant and Oku Properties, property 
owner. 

 
•  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC11-___-. 

 
 B. A Resolution of the Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Temporary Use Permit 

Application UP 10/1-006: A Modification to Temporary Use Permit Application UP 10/1-004 
for the Placement of a Temporary Sales Office in the Sunset Shopping Center to allow the 
installation of temporary utilities (APN 0173-390-150).  R & R Development Company LLC, 
applicant and WRI Golden State LLC, property owner. 

 
•  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC11-___-. 

 



Planning Commission Agenda 
April 12, 2011 

Page 2 
 
 
 

 
6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:  Action to be taken where appropriate. 
 
 
 General Plan Update 
 
 
7.  COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 A. Staff 

 B. Commissioners 

 C. Agenda Forecast 
 
8.  ADJOURN. 

a&m/110412.pca 
 

 



  

1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
7:00 P.M., FEBRUARY 22, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA   94585 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Next Resolution No. PC11-03 
1.  ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
Absent: 
None 
  
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
  
None 
  
3.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
None 
  
4.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  
For each of the following items, the public will be given an opportunity to speak.  After a Staff 
Report, the Chair will open the Public Hearing.  At that time, the applicant will be allowed to make 
a presentation.  Members of the public will then be allowed to speak.  After all have spoken, the 
applicant is allowed to respond to issues raised by the public, after which the Public Hearing is 
normally closed.  Comments should be brief and to the point.  The Chair reserves the right to limit 
repetitious or non-related comments.  The public is reminded that all decisions of the Planning 
Commission are appealable to the City Council by filing a written Notice of Appeal with the City 
Clerk within ten (10) calendar days. 
   
A.   Resolution Of The City Of Suisun City Planning Commission Recommending 

Approval Of An Ordinance To The Suisun City Council Amending Chapter 18, 
Section 18.66.560 “Expiration Through Disuse” To The Suisun City Municipal Code 
Pertaining To Use Permits.  Zoning Text Amendment ZTA 11-01. 

  
April Wooden presented the staff report. Ms. Wooden explained that this resolution recommends a 
Zoning Text Amendment to the City Council.  She further explained that over the past couple of 
years the Commission has approved several use permits that automatically expire if not exercised 
within a one-year period. Given the current economy, some applicants have not been able to move 
forward as rapidly with their projects as they had planned.  She explained that the State has enacted 
an amendment to the Subdivision Map Act which provides for an automatic extension of 



  

subdivision maps for the same reasons.   In the case of the proposed ZTA, the applicant could 
request in writing an extension of the use permit and, assuming that the project has not changed in 
any manner, the extension could be approved by the Community Development Director. 
  
Ms. Wooden pointed out a typographical error on page 2 of the Resolution referencing CEQA, 
stating that it should read "15061" and she thanked Commissioner Harris for pointing out the error.    
  
Chairperson Clemente opened the Public Hearing. Hearing no comments, the Public Hearing was 
closed. 
  
After a brief discussion Commissioner Adeva moved to approve PC Resolution PC11-03.  
Commissioner Ramos seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0.  
             
5.  GENERAL BUSINESS:   
 
A.   Resolution Of The City Of Suisun City Planning Commission Making A Finding Of 

General Plan Conformity For The Future Sale Of A Portion Of City-Owned Property 
(APN 0173-131-140) 

  
John Kearns presented the staff report and gave a brief background on the property.  He explained 
that the property has been used in a “community center” capacity since 1983.  He stated that the 
parcel has a General Plan and Zoning designation of Park.  Mr. Kearns further explained that it is the 
City’s intent to sell real property to a non-profit entity to allow for the entity’s expansion of a 
community center at that site.  He stated that in order to sell the property, the Planning Commission 
must find that the proposed future use of the real property proposed to be sold is in conformity with 
the General Plan as a designation as “Park”. 
  
The Commission voiced concerns about the parking lot and driveway ownership, existing trees next 
to the parking lot, and the responsible party for removal and replacement. 
  
Chairperson Clemente opened the Public Hearing. 
  
Charles Kingeter voiced concern about the removal of the fully matured trees and replacement with 
younger ones.  He encouraged the Planning Commission to have the landscape plans submitted to 
the Planning Commission for review. 
  
Hearing no further comments Chairperson Clemente closed the Public Hearing. 
  
Commissioner Holzwarth moved to approved Resolution No. PC11-04.  Commissioner Adeva 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0. 
  
Ms. Wooden explained that The Salvation Army had recently submitted the landscape plans but 
staff had not had the opportunity to review them.  She stated that the conditions of approval for the 
TSA project required landscape plans to be reviewed and approved by the community development 
director. However, she assured the Commission that after the review, should there be anything that 
was of concern that could not be resolved, she would consider bringing the plans back to the 
Commission for review. 
  
6.  COMMUNICATIONS: 
  
A. Staff :  General Plan Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Summary Mr. Kearns gave a 
brief update of the four meeting that had been held over the past 9 months.  He explained that 
there were 12 reports that the Committee discussed. He also informed the Commission that a 
similar report would be presented to the City Council.  He stated that policy development would 
begin with opportunities for the public to engage in the process which would include discussion 

2 



  

of Land Use Alternatives and the Notice of Preparation for the Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR). 
  
The Commission voiced concerns about the circulation element and how the City of Fairfield’s 
pursuit of a train station would affect Suisun City . 
  
Mr. Kingeter encouraged the Commission and staff to be pro- active in reminding the public of 
the Suisun City train station. 
  
April Wooden provided an update to the Commission regarding the regional issues that were 
ongoing and the City's participation. 
 
She gave a brief update on the Sustainable Community Strategy.  The SCS is a process that was 
triggered by SB375 and AB32, requiring a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions throughout the 
state.  The SCS will provide a base line of the region and a proposed vision scenario outlining 
where growth should occur in the future.  It is important for the City to be engaged in this process 
because there is strong sentiment from the inner bay area that growth only be focused in that 
inner bay area. The thinking is that the suburban ring counties should not grow very much and the 
basis for this is that it would result in a greater reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by keeping 
housing growth near transit and reducing vehicle miles traveled.  So the idea is that people would 
live near transit, live near employment and by not allowing additional growth in the suburban 
areas fewer people would commute by car into the bay area. The ring counties are trying to 
explain that by creating more jobs in areas such as Solano county and shortening the commute, it 
would still cut down on the greenhouse gasses.  One unfortunate result could be that the 
transportation monies will follow growth, which means Solano county would lose funds for 
transportation improvements. 
  
Solano County Planning Directors have asked Ms. Wooden to serve on the Regional Advisory 
Working Group and because of her work in this group she has been asked to serve on a committee 
that is going to be involved in setting the criteria for evaluating the regional transportation plan 
project submittal. 
  
  She also stated that it is time, once again, to allocate the Regional Housing Needs (RHNA), 
through the RHNA process.  ABAG is allowing counties to establish subregions for the purposes of 
allocating the housing. Solano County and its cities have agreed to participate in this sub region 
process and have hired a consultant, David Earley, to assist in the process. The City's share of the 
cost is $2500.    
  
The City is still concerned regarding the Governor's proposal to eliminate redevelopment. Both the 
assembly and senate have voted on bills, which were sent to a conference committee, but the 
language has not been written yet  
 
Staff met with consultants regarding the Focus Grant.  They will be assisting the City in analyzing 
market potential in our PDA. 
  
The California Energy Commission has a program called Energy Upgrade California to encourage 
retrofitting of residential properties for energy savings. Suisun City has agreed to serve as the local 
lead agency and will monitor the $463,000 grant.  The City will receive approximately 10% to 
cover administration costs. 
  
Ms. Wooden reported on the purchase and resale of several foreclosed homes.  Ms. Wooden also 
stated that the WalMart project was close to having an agreement on the linear mitigation 
replacement site. 
 
  

3 



  

4 

B. Commissioners:  The Commissioners asked staff to look at the Sign Ordinance.  They are 
concerned about the growing number of small signs for real estate, garage sales and overall 
businesses.  They also asked about the ordinance requiring garbage cans be hidden from 
street view. 

 
7. ADJOURN  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:38 pm. 
 



PREPARED BY: Stephanie Hagar, Planning Intern 
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 12, 2011 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING:  A Resolution of the City 
of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP 10/1-
005 for the Establishment of an Auto Repair Business at 605 Railroad Avenue, Unit J (0037-090-
060)  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None associated with this item.  
 
APPLICANT:  
Muhammad Malik 
73 Villa Circle 
Fairfield, CA 94533 
    
OWNER:     
Oku Properties 
1525 Sonnys Way 
Hollister, CA 95023 
 
SITE DATA: 
 (1) General Plan/Zoning:   Commercial Service/Commercial Service                
 (2) Building Configuration: Rectangular building containing multiple units  
 (3) Surrounding Land Use/Zoning: 

North – Railroad and City of Fairfield High Density Residential 
South – Multifamily Housing/Medium Density Residential 
West – Commercial/Commercial Service 
East – Commercial/Commercial Service 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  The proposed project is categorically exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15301, Existing Facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The applicant submitted a business license for an auto repair business at 605 
Railroad Avenue, Unit J on February 1, 2010.  Upon receipt of a copy of the business license, the 
Community Development Department determined that the zoning for the proposed location 
requires approval of a Conditional Use Permit prior to establishing an auto repair business.  Staff 
contacted the applicant and informed him that a Conditional Use Permit is required.  The 
application was determined complete in early April, 2011.   
 
The application materials state that the applicant intends to conduct automobile sales on site in 
conjunction with the automobile repair business.  Although outdoor sales lots are a permitted use 
in the proposed location, a conditional use permit is nonetheless required for the auto repair 
portion of the business. 
 



STAFF REPORT:  The proposed business will conduct standard automobile repairs such as 
brake repairs, tune-ups, and replacement of parts.  The proposed business will conduct auto sales 
and will have a maximum of one car on site for sale at any one time.  The proposed business will 
operate between the hours of 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM Monday through Saturday and will be 
closed on Sundays.  The business will be small, staffed by one employee, and is expected to 
serve one customer on the average day. 
 
There are four parking spaces on the property that are reserved for the unit where the proposed 
business will be conducted and three additional parking spaces on the property that are available 
for shared use.  All repair work will be conducted inside the building and vehicles that are in the 
process of being repaired will be kept indoors at all times.  The vehicle that is for sale will be 
stored outside in one of the spaces reserved for the unit.  The Suisun City zoning ordinance 
requires that auto repair uses have one parking space for every 400 square feet of floor area.  
Since the proposed use is to be conducted within a 1200-square-foot space, only three parking 
spaces are required.  These three spaces should be sufficient to accommodate the number of 
employees and customers that will be at the business at any one time. 
 
There are several automobile related businesses in the vicinity.  Businesses in other units in the 
same building as the proposed use include an existing auto repair business, an ice cream storage 
business, a fire safety supply business, and an electrical contractor.  The previous use for the unit 
that will contain the proposed business was auto repair. 
 
Required Permit: 
Approval of a Conditional Use Permit is required to establish the proposed use in a Commercial 
Service (C-S) district.  Automobile repair is not listed as permitted uses in the C-S district. 
However, the C-S district allows the establishment of Light-Manufacturing uses (such as auto 
repair) subject to approval of a Conditional Use Permit.   
 
Findings: 
Section 18.66.060 of the Suisun City zoning ordinance requires that the Planning Commission 
make three findings and staff suggests that an additional two findings be made (below): 
 
Finding 1: That the project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Section 15301, as a use of an existing structure involving only minor interior alterations. 
 

Staff believes that Finding 1 can be made because the business will be conducted in an 
existing unit that has been used similarly in the past. Therefore the project is categorically 
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act per Section 15301, Existing 
Facilities. 

 
Finding 2: That the use of the auto repair business has been considered through the Conditional 
Use Permit process as required by the Suisun City Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Staff believes that Finding 2 can be made because the Planning Commission provided 
public notice, has held a public hearing, and has considered the staff report and record 
before taking action on this discretionary permit. Therefore the consideration of the use 
permit has been conducted in the manner required by the Municipal Code. 



Finding 3: The establishment, maintenance or operation of a use or building applied for are in 
conformity to the general plan for the city with regard to traffic circulation, population 
densities and distribution, and/or other aspects of the general plan considered by the zoning 
administrator to be pertinent. 

 
Staff believes that Finding 3 can be made.  The proposed location has a General Plan 
designation of Service Commercial.  The Service Commercial land use designation is 
intended to accommodate a broader range of commercial land uses than would otherwise be 
permitted in community commercial areas, including those uses that produce noise or have 
other impacts that make them incompatible with residential neighborhoods.  The General 
Plan lists auto repair as an appropriate use along Railroad Avenue in areas designated for 
Service Commercial. Therefore, the use conforms to the pertinent policies of the General 
Plan. 

Finding 4: Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or other necessary facilities have 
been or are being provided.  

Staff believes that Finding 4 can be made.  The proposed use will be located in an existing 
building with utility service connections and vehicle access. Therefore, all utilities, access, 
drainage and other necessary facilities have been or are being provided. 

Finding 5:  The applicant exhibits proof that such use will not, under the circumstances of the 
particular case, constitute a nuisance or be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, 
comfort or general welfare of persons residing or working in or passing through the 
neighborhood of such proposed use, or be detrimental or injurious to property and 
improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the city, provided that if any 
proposed building or use is necessary for the public health, safety or general welfare, the 
finding shall be to that effect. 

Staff believes that Finding 5 can be made.  The proposed use is not expected to cause odors 
or dust and is expected to generate only a small amount of used oil for disposal.  Used oil 
will be disposed of at facilities available at a Kragen Auto Parts store.  Noise generated by 
the business will be minimal and is not anticipated to impact adjecent properties.  
Furthermore, the parking available on site is expected to be sufficient to serve the proposed 
business. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution No. PC11-___: A Resolution of the City 
of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Use Permit UP 10/1-005 for the Establishment 
of an Auto Repair Business at 605 Railroad Avenue (0037-090-060). 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

1. Resolution No. PC11- 
2. Application Materials 
 
 

 



 RESOLUTION NO. PC 11- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 
CITY APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO. UP10/1-005 

FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUTO REPAIR BUSINESS AT 605 RAILROAD 
AVENUE, UNIT J (0037-090-060) 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at their regular meeting of April 12, 2011 did review 
application UP10/1-005 for the establishment of an auto repair business at 605 Railroad Avenue; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the public hearing notice was published in the Daily Republic on April 2, 2011; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the 

recommendations of said meeting; and 
 

 WHEREAS, all relevant City regulations and ordinances have been considered in relation to 
this project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301; and 

 
 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented to the Planning Commission by City Staff and the 
applicant, the following Findings are hereby made: 
 

1. That the project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act, 
Section 15301, as a use of an existing structure involving only minor interior alterations. 

 
2. That the use of the auto repair business has been considered through the Use Permit 

process as required by the Suisun City Zoning Ordinance. 
 

3. That the auto repair business, when subject to the adopted conditions, will not conflict 
with the Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the General Plan. 

 
4. That the auto repair business, when subject to the adopted conditions, will not have 

significant noise, traffic, or parking impacts on the neighborhood. 
 

5. That the auto repair business, when subject to the adopted conditions, will not be 
detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in or 
adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or improvements 
in the vicinity, nor to the general welfare of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Suisun City does hereby approve the Use Permit subject to the following Conditions and all 
other local, state, and federal requirements: 



605 Railroad Avenue Unit J 
UP10/1-005 

 
 

1. The applicant shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local codes including, 
but not limited to, the Uniform Building Code, Fire Code and County Health Department 
guidelines as interpreted by the County Health Inspectors.  

 
2. There shall be no loitering in or around the property at any time. 

 
3. The business shall operate as stated in the staff report; if there are changes to the business 

those changes shall be subject to the approval of the Planning Department as well as all 
other appropriate agencies. 

 
4. There shall be no outdoor storage of wrecked, damaged or inoperable vehicles. 

 
5. No automobile repairs or other work shall be preformed outside of the building. 

 
6. No more than one vehicle shall be displayed for sale at any time. 

 
7. The vehicle that is displayed for sale shall be parked in a parking space reserved for Unit 

J at all times. 
 

8. Use of the property shall not create noise or nuisance problems to adjoining users. 
 

9. This permit shall be valid for a period of three years from approval.  After this time, a new 
application must be submitted and considered as to the appropriateness of its continued use 
at this location. 

 
10. Any signs or building alterations shall be submitted to the City for the appropriate review 

and approval. 
 

11. The hours of operation shall be 9AM to 5PM Monday through Saturday and the business 
shall be closed on Sunday. 

 
12. Approval of this permit shall become effective, provided no appeals are received within 10 

calendar days of the Planning Commission meeting date of April 12, 2011 and that the 
property owner and applicant signatures are obtained affirming that they have read and 
understand the Conditions of Approval for the Conditional Use Permit No. 10/1-005 and 
agree to comply with the conditions.   

 
13. The applicant shall receive an approved City of Suisun City business license prior to 

operation of the proposed business. 

 
The foregoing motion was made by Commissioner _____ and seconded by Commissioner 

_____ and carried by the following vote:  



605 Railroad Avenue Unit J 
UP10/1-005 

 
 
AYES: Commissioners:    
NOES: Commissioners:    
ABSENT: Commissioners:    
ABSTAIN:  Commissioners:    
 
 
 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 12th day of April 2011. 

 
 
   
                Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 
 
 
 



PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 
 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 12, 2011 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING:  A Resolution of the City 
of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Temporary Use Permit Application No. UP 10/1-
006: A Modification to Temporary Use Permit UP 10/1-004 for the Placement of a Temporary 
Sales Office in the Sunset Shopping Center to Allow Installation of Temporary Utilities (APN 
0173-390-150). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None associated with this item. 
 
APPLICANT:  
R&R Development Company LLC 
1207 13th Street, Suite G 
Modesto, CA 95354 
    
OWNER:     
WRI Golden State LLC 
2600 Citadel Plaza Drive 
Houston, TX 77008 
 
SITE DATA: 
 (1) General Plan/Zoning:   PUD Commercial/General Commercial               
 (2) Building Configuration: 12’ x 44’ temporary sales office located in the Sunset 

Shopping Center along Highway 12 
 (3) Surrounding Land Use/Zoning: 

North – Sunset Shopping Center/General Commercial/ 
South – Highway 12/General Commercial/ 
West – McDonald’s Restaurant/General Commercial/ 
East – Black Bear Diner/General Commercial 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  The proposed project is categorically exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15303, New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The applicant represents a fitness company planning to locate in a currently 
vacant tenant space within the Sunset Shopping Center. The tenant will first renovate the space 
and then open for business in the summer of 2011.  On January 25, 2011 the applicant received 
approval from the Planning Commission to locate and operate a temporary sales trailer in the 
Sunset Shopping Center. At the time of the approval, the applicant believed that all utilities were 
present and in close proximity to the location of the sales trailer. It was later determined that 
there was not electricity or data service in close proximity. The applicant is requesting that two 



(2) 25’ temporary poles be installed on-site to accommodate electrical and telephone cable to the 
modular. After working with staff on a solution, it was determined that the applicant must 
request the necessary changes from the Planning Commission. The applicant has secured the 
signature of the property owner as part of the application submittal. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  The proposal (detailed above) includes only work that is to take place on the 
shopping center property including the area in which any cable would overhang. Additionally, 
the Elevation Detail (attached as “application materials”) shows a minimum clearance of 18’ 
which would accommodate emergency response vehicles and is consistent with minimum Public 
Works standards. From an aesthetic point-of-view, the proposal is not ideal as it would add 
additional “visual clutter” to public view. However, staff believes that consideration should be 
given to the fact that the proposal is temporary, and once the primary tenant space is ready to 
open, the poles, wires, and cables would be removed along with the modular sales office. In 
addition, it is not uncommon for temporary uses to utilize temporary utility sources as has been 
the case within Suisun City historically.  
 
Required Permit: 
The applicant is requesting a modification to the previously approved temporary use permit 
which was approved by the Planning Commission on January 25, 2011. 
 
Findings: 
Section 18.66.075 of the Suisun City zoning ordinance states that the three findings discussed 
below are necessary for the approval of a temporary use permit. 
 
Finding 1: That the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15303: New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures. 
 

Staff believes that Finding 1 can be made because the temporary use will be take place 
solely within a temporary portable structure. Therefore, the project would be exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act per Section 15303: New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures. 

 
Finding 2: That the proposed temporary use will be located, operated and maintained in a 
manner consistent with the policies of the General Plan and the provisions of this title. 
 

Staff believes that Finding 2 can be made because the proposed use is a temporary 
commercial use which is accessory to a more permanent commercial use in an existing 
tenant space. The General Plan clearly supports commercial activities to take place within 
the General Commercial land use designation. Therefore, the proposed temporary use 
will be located, operated and maintained in a manner consistent with the policies of the 
General Plan and the provisions of this title. 

 
Finding 3: That approval of the application will not be detrimental to property or improvements 
in the surrounding area or to the public health, safety or general welfare. 
 



Staff believes that Finding 3 can be made because the modification to the approved 
temporary use is designed to be compatible with the shopping center and will be removed 
at the time the modular is removed. Therefore, the approval would not be detrimental to 
property or improvements in the surrounding area or to the public health, safety or 
general welfare. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution No. PC11-___: A Resolution of the City 
of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Temporary Use Permit UP10/1-006: A 
Modification to Temporary Use Permit Application UP 10/1-004 for the Placement of a 
Temporary Sales Office in the Sunset Shopping Center to Allow Installation of Temporary Utilies 
(0173-390-150). 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

1. Resolution No. PC11- 
2. Application Materials 
 
 

 



  
RESOLUTION NO. PC11- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  
APPROVING TEMPORARY USE PERMIT UP10/1-006: A MODIFICATION TO 

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT NO. UP10/1-004 FOR THE PLACEMENT OF A 
TEMPORARY SALES OFFICE IN THE SUNSET SHOPPING CENTER TO ALLOW 

INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY UTILITIES (APN 0173-390-150)  
  

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a regular meeting on January 25, 2011 did 
review application UP10/1-004 for the placement of a modular portable unit to be used as a 
temporary sales office in the Sunset Shopping Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a regular meeting on April 12, 2011 did 
review Temporary Use Permit UP10/1-006: A modification to application UP10/1-004 for the 
placement of a modular portable unit to be used as a temporary sales office in the Sunset 
Shopping Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public notice was published in the Daily Republic on April 2, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the record of 
said meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this project has been considered regarding all pertinent city regulations and 
ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures; and   
 
 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented to the Planning Commission by City Staff and 
the applicant, the following Findings are hereby made:  

 
1. That the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15303: New Construction or Conversion 
of Small Structures. The temporary use will be take place solely within a temporary portable 
structure. Therefore, the project would be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act per Section 15303: New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures. 

 
2. That the proposed temporary use will be located, operated, and maintained in a manner 

consistent with the policies of the general plan and zoning ordinance. The proposed use is 
a temporary commercial use which is accessory to a more permanent commercial use in 
an existing tenant space. The General Plan clearly supports commercial activities to take 
place within the General Commercial land use designation. Therefore, the proposed 
temporary use will be located, operated and maintained in a manner consistent with the 
policies of the General Plan and the provisions of this title. 

 
3. That approval of the application will not be detrimental to property or improvements in the 

surrounding area or to the public health, safety or general welfare. The use is located away 



 
 

from high traffic volumes in the center and will take place solely within the temporary 
sales office. Therefore, the approval would not be detrimental to property or 
improvements in the surrounding area or to the public health, safety or general welfare. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 
Suisun City does hereby approve Temporary Use Permit No. UP10/1-006: A modification of  
Temporary Use Permit UP 10/1-004 for a temporary sales office in the Sunset Shopping Center to 
allow installation of temporary utilities, subject to the following Conditions, all Suisun City 
Codes and Ordinances, and state and federal law: 
 

1. The location and use of the modular portable unit shall be in substantial conformance 
with the plans submitted for Temporary Use Permit Application No. 10/1-004 with the 
modifications approved for Temporary Use Permit No. 10/1-006. 

 
2. Approval of this permit shall become effective April 22, 2011 provided no appeals are 

received within 10 calendar days of the Planning Commission meeting date of April 12, 
2011 and that applicant signatures are obtained affirming that they have read and 
understand the Conditions of Approval for Use Permit No. 10/1-004 and agree to comply 
with the conditions. 

 
3. The temporary use permit shall be valid for a period of six months from approval.  Prior to 

the expiration of the permit, the temporary unit shall be removed and the parking lot shall 
be returned to its prior condition, including the removal of temporary power poles, wires, 
and cables all to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

 
4. The use shall not obstruct any sidewalk or parking lot drive aisle at any time. 
 
5. The use shall conform to all local, state, and federal laws and regulations including ADA 

requirements of the Suisun City Building Department. 
 

6. At all times there shall be a minimum vertical clearance of 18 feet from grade to the 
lowest point of any electrical or data cable. 

 
The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner _____ and seconded by Commissioner 

_____ and carried by the folowing vote:  
 

AYES: Commissioners:  
NOES: Commissioners:  
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 12h day of April 2011 
 
 

 
Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 



Supplement to Request to Modify Temporary Use Permit Application 

R&R Development Company LLC 

 On January 25, 2011, R&R Development Company LLC (“Applicant”) appeared before the 
Planning Commission requesting approval for the placement of a temporary modular office near the 
intersection of Sunset Avenue and State Highway 12 for purposes of marketing and advertising a new 
fitness facility to be located in vacant tenant space within the shopping center at that location.  At the time 
of that application, it was believed that the modular unit could be connected to electrical power by way of 
an underground cable from a nearby power source.  It was later discovered that the power connection 
nearby could not serve as a source of electrical service to the modular.  Applicant then investigated 
several alternatives, including portable generators and solar panels.  After extensive review of the 
possibilities, Applicant believes that running a cable from the vacant tenant space to the modular is the 
most appropriate method to provide power to the unit.  A standard telephone cable will be run alongside 
the electrical cable.  As demonstrated by the photo simulation, the electrical site plan and the elevation, 
along with photos depicting a similar installation at another location, all included with this Supplement, 
this will have very slight visual impact to the shopping center, will create no public safety concern and 
will allow the modular office to function as intended. 

Applicant uses the modular office to greet the public, introduce the fitness company to the community 
and to secure memberships for the planned new facility.   The ability to generate excitement for this new 
business and secure members is a fundamental and indeed essential aspect of the company’s business 
model when coming in to a new city.  Use of the modular office supports this goal.  While Applicant 
regrets the need to now revise the original submittal, the consideration of the Commission on this 
supplemental item is respectfully requested and appreciated.  



Sandra
Typewritten Text

Sandra
Typewritten Text
SIMULATION OF PROPOSED INSTALLATION







Sandra
Typewritten Text

Sandra
Typewritten Text
FOLLOWING IMAGES:EXAMPLE OF SIMILAR INSTALLATION

Sandra
Typewritten Text












	605 Railroad Ave Staff Report.pdf
	605 Railroad Ave_Resolution.pdf
	ABSTAIN:  Commissioners:   


	Sunset Center Trailer TUP SR_modification.pdf
	Suisun City Elec supplement opt.pdf
	Elec drop simulation
	Presales series 1
	Presales series 2
	Presales series 3
	Presales series 4
	Presales series 5
	Presales series 6





